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The directors present their report of James Bay Minerals Limited (the 'Company', or the 'parent entity') and its controlled 
entities (collectively, the 'Group'), together with the financial statements, on the Company for the period ended 30 June 2024.  
 
The Company was incorporated on 1 June 2022. Accordingly, the comparative results presented in these financial statements 
are for the 13 month period ended 30 June 2023. 
 
Directors 
The following persons were Directors of James Bay Minerals Limited during the whole of the financial year and up to the date 
of this report, unless otherwise stated: 
  
Andrew Dornan - Executive Director 
Gerard O'Donovan - Non-Executive Chair 
Dean Ercegovic - Non-Executive Director (Appointed 8 September 2023) 
Judith Baker - Non-Executive Director (Appointed 8 September 2023) 
Daniel Loughnan - Non-Executive Director (Resigned 8 September 2023) 
 
Principal activities 
During the financial period the principal continuing activities of the Group are: The exploration and evaluation of lithium 
resources in the James Bay region of Quebec, Canada. 
 
Dividends 
There were no dividends paid, recommended or declared during the current or previous financial year. 
 
Review of operations 
James Bay Minerals (ASX: JBY) (“James Bay Minerals” or “the Company”) is pleased to provide a review of operations for 
the year ended 30 June 2024. 
  
The loss for the Group after providing for income tax amounted to $4,840,677 (30 June 2023: $659,713). 
  
James Bay Minerals is a Canadian-focused lithium explorer with a highly strategic ground position in the heart of the La 
Grande Greenstone Belt – which has risen to recent prominence following several world-class lithium pegmatite discoveries 
as well as accelerating exploration, development and corporate activity. The Company’s portfolio of properties was identified 
and secured by its experienced team due to them displaying the key geological characteristics required to host massive LCT 
(lithium-caesium-tantalum) pegmatites1. 
  
The Company (through its wholly-owned subsidiary) holds a 100% interest in 811 Claims comprising the La Grande Project, 
La Grande East and the Troilus Project in Quebec, Canada (Projects), with the La Grande Project consisting of the Joule, 
Aero and Aqua Properties.  
  
Joule Property – La Grande Project 
  
The Joule Property is James Bay Minerals’ flagship asset, covering an area of 16,385 hectares along the Robert-Bourassa 
reservoir. Joule has a ~24km deformation zone running east to west through the Property, with deformation widths of up to 
1.5km in the north-eastern part of the property2. 
  
During the reporting Period, a substantial exploration target list was compiled using data derived from the Company’s maiden 
exploration program at the Joule Property.  
  
Activities and data generated as part of the Company’s maiden field program were as follows: 
(1)  LiDAR and high-resolution photography. 
(2)  Aeromagnetic and spectromagnetic surveys flown with the key focus on overlaying LiDAR targets generated with 

magnetic lows to rank targets in order of priority. 
(3)  Short reconnaissance helicopter mapping program undertaken. 
(4)  Small exploration camp established for 2024 field prospecting and mapping campaigns. 
(5)  Additional 115 claims staked for an additional area of 5,800 hectares (58km2). 
  

 
1 See James Bay Minerals Prospectus dated 19 July 2023 
2 See James Bay Minerals Prospectus dated 19 July 2023 
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The maiden field program specifically emphasised the use of aerial surveys employing LiDAR, high-resolution photography, 
as well as Aeromagnetic and Spectromagnetic surveys. As anticipated, the target list comprises a considerable number of 
high-priority LCT pegmatite targets, as shown in Figure 1 below. In addition, what is particularly encouraging are the significant 
number of prospective Rae Earth Element (REE) targets generated. These targets have exhibited elevated equivalent-
Thorium (eTh) levels3, indicating the presence of significant REE mineralisation. Concurrent exploration activities are being 
undertaken for both LCT pegmatites and REE mineralisation.  
  
LCT Pegmatite Exploration  
  
The Company’s focus remains on comprehensively understanding the LCT pegmatite potential across the Joule Property. 
Aerial surveys conducted in late 2023 provided the initial insights necessary for this understanding. During the Period, the 
Company commenced a fieldwork program consisting of field mapping, rock chip sampling and, where appropriate, channel 
sampling. The fieldwork program was ongoing at the end of the end of the reporting period and results are awaited.  
  

 
  

Figure 1 – High-priority LCT pegmatite targets/dykes identified across the Joule Property as defined in pink. A full gallery of the targets identified were 
detailed within ASX Announcement dated 6 February 2024. 

  
 

 

 
3 See James Bay Minerals ASX Announcement dated 15 February 2024 
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Figure 2 – Joule property field prospecting on predetermined 

targets. 
Figure 3 – Joule property field prospecting on 

predetermined targets. 
 
 
REE Exploration Activities 
Radiometric surveys completed at the Joule Property during the Period identified elevated equivalent-Thorium (eTh) 
concentrations reaching up to 22ppm, a common marker of significant REE mineralisation. Follow-up work during the Period 
included the use of scintillator technology across prospective REE zones along with obtaining rock samples for laboratory 
analysis.  
  
Figure 4 below displays the extensive spread of elevated equivalent Thorium (eTh) concentrations levels throughout the Joule 
Property, firstly within the highly prospective regional fault which runs from east to west through the property and, secondly, 
in a large cluster to the south-east of the property. 
  
Elevated eTh concentrations typical of significant rare earth deposits have been obtained throughout the highly prospective 
regional fault which runs east to west through the Joule Property. This zone is outlined as the prospective zone within Figure 
5 below.  
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Figure 4 – Prospective REE zones with elevated radiometric eTh readings. 
  
Radiometric surveys have also indicated strong eU readings across the Joule Property, with three intriguing zones having 
particularly high Uranium readings of up to 29ppm eU4, as illustrated in Figure 5 below. 
  

 
4 See James Bay Minerals ASX Announcement dated 15 February 2024 
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Figure 5 – Prospective Uranium zones with elevate radiometric eU readings. 
  
The geophysics results outlined above will be carefully considered and prioritised for field exploration programs in the coming 
period.  
 
Geophysical methods of equivalent concentrations are not a replacement for assay determination and as such are to be taken 
as indicators of grade only. By their indirect nature, such measurements need to be considered in the context of their 
application and not relied upon for quantitative analysis. 
  
Aqua Property – La Grande Project 
The Aqua Property consists of 172 continuous claims covering an area of 8,803 hectares including 109 claims (56km2) recently 
acquired through staking activity. Regional faults transverse the property from east to west which hosts the La Grande 
Greenstones5. 
  
Using LiDAR technology, the exploration team has measured and mapped variations in slope, aspect and elevation to analyse 
landforms. This analysis has identified high-priority areas that stand out among other geological structures, characteristic of 
LCT pegmatites in the region. Overlaying these findings onto high-resolution photos revealed visible white outcrops, and 
generated key targets for prioritisation during the 2024 summer field program, as illustrated in figure 6 below, including high-
priority targets located approximately 200 metres east of FIN Resources (ASX: FIN) significant spodumene showings, where 
assay have revealed grades as high as 6.85% Li2O6. 
  
Initial field exploration activities undertaken during the Period comprised field mapping, rock chip sampling and channel 
sampling. Access lines were also cut across the property to facilitate ATV mobility. 
  

 
5 See James Bay Minerals Prospectus dated 19 July 2023 
6 See James Bay Minerals announcement dated 4 December 2023 
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Figure 6 – High-priority LCT pegmatite targets/dykes across Aqua Property defined in pink. 
  
Subsequent to the end of the period, the Company reported the discovery of widely distributed crystals with elevated lithium 
readings returned using a SciAps LIBS Z903 within an outcropping pegmatite dyke at the highly prospective Aqua Property, 
as shown in Figures 7 - 10 below7. 
  
The pegmatite dyke measures approximately 60 metres in length and is 15 metres wide at its outcropping portion and dips at 
an angle of about 20 degrees to the east. It runs in a north-east to south-west direction and continues further undercover in 
both the north-east and south-west directions. The Company has thoroughly documented and logged details about the crystals 
identified, and plans to conduct additional work, including stripping and channel sampling, to further evaluate its potential. 
  
Samples have been collected for petrography and/or XRD work to confirm if the primary lithium-bearing mineral is spodumene 
and if other lithium minerals are present. Once received, assay results will be used to determine the lithium content, which 
has initially been identified using the hand-held LIBS analyser. 
  

 
7 See James Bay Minerals announcement dated 17 July 2024 
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Figure 7 – Aqua property detailing mapped pegmatites and location of elevated Lithium readings from SciAps Z903. 
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Figure 8 – Raw outcrop with the green mineral returning 

elevated LIBs readings. 
Figure 9 – Raw outcrop with the green mineral returning 

elevated LIBs readings. 
 
 

 
  

Figure 10 – Pegmatite dyke identified in the north-west of Aqua Property with green crystals marked in orange. 
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Aero Property – La Grande Project 
  
The Aero Property consists of 101 continuous claims covering an area of 4,980 hectares. The property consists of ~13km of 
east to west deformation zones. Regional faults transverse the property from east to west which hosts the La Grande 
Greenstones8. 
  
Activities and data generated as part of the Company’s maiden field program at the Aero Property included: 
●  LiDAR and high-resolution photography.  
●  Aeromagnetic and spectromagnetic surveys flown with key data deliverables received. 
●  Field mapping and detailed prospecting across the property uncovered two fields of fractionated pegmatites. 
●  Rock chip and channel sampling undertaken, and samples assayed. 

 
 
Shortly after commencing the inaugural fieldwork program at the Aero Property, the Company announced that it had 
uncovered a pegmatite field comprising over 20 pegmatites and covering a corridor ~3km long and ~350m wide9. 
 

Number  Pegmatite Name Approximate pegmatite 
Length (m) 

Approximate Max 
width exposed (m) 

1 Armstrong 292 10 
2 Avro 400 20 
3 Brewster 133 10 
4 Bristol 102 5 
5 Corsair 276 10 
6 Curtiss 324 5 
7 Fairey 152 5 
8 Fury 97 10 
9 Gauntlet 175 10 
10 Havoc 59 5 
11 Hawker 560 20 
12 Hellcat 450 31 
13 Lightning 60 10 
14 Marauder 60 6 
15 Meteor 50 10 
16 Mustang 286 22 
17 Spitfire 86 15 
18 Thunderbolt 591 10 
19 Warhawk 180 10 
20 Wildcat 87 5 
21 Gloster 72 5 

 

 
 
  
The pegmatite dykes observed were generally white in colour and clearly stand out as ridges several metres above the 
surrounding brown coloured biotite schist that it is injected into. All dip steeply to the north, sub-parallel to the foliation planes 
of the biotite schist. All pegmatite dykes consist of coarse-grained, well-developed crystals of plagioclase (albite), quartz, 
tourmaline and muscovite. 
  

 
8 See James Bay Minerals Prospectus dated 19 July 2023 
9 See James Bay Minerals announcement dated 5 October 2023 
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Figure 11 – Pegmatite field Aero property 
  
Following on from the initial discovery of an extensive field of fractionated pegmatite dykes at the Aero Property, the Company 
continued field mapping within the eastern portion of the Aero Property, where they uncovered a second field of fractionated 
pegmatites10 
  
The field comprised nine new pegmatites extending across a corridor ~1.5km in length and ~500m wide. The second 
pegmatite field was interpreted to be an extension of the previously discovered field, which is located approximately 2km to 
the south-west. 
  
Similar to the initial discovery, all nine additional dykes observed are generally white in colour and clearly stand out as ridges 
several metres above the surrounding ground. All dip steeply to the north, sub-parallel to the foliation planes of the biotite 
schist. All pegmatite dykes consist of coarse-grained, well-developed crystals of plagioclase (albite), quartz, tourmaline and 
muscovite.  
  
Details of the pegmatites discovered and mapped within the second field are provided in Table 2 below. 
 

Number Pegmatite Name Approximate pegmatite 
Length (m) 

Approximate Max 
width exposed (m) 

1 Nimrod 87 15 
2 Grumman* 110 5 
3 Piper 170 15 
4 Gladiator 124 22 
5 Firefly 135 5 
6 Demon 50 5 
7 Bulldog 190 12 
8 Bleroit* 202 10 
9 Avia 151 10 

* Grumman ~30m sits within the Aero Property boundary. 
 

* Bleroit ~98m sits within the Aero Property boundary. 
 

 
 

 
Table 2 – Outlines and exposed area of all pegmatite dykes discovered within second field of pegmatites at Aero Property. 

 

 
10 See James Bay Minerals announcement dated 2 November 2023 



James Bay Minerals Limited 
Directors' report 
30 June 2024 
 
 

  

  
12 

 
  

Figure 32 – Satellite image and locations of second pegmatite field at Aero Property. 
  
Extensive rock grab samples, channel samples, hand-held XRF and LIBs testing was completed across the south-eastern 
portion of the Aero Property during the Period with elevated lithium readings reported at several previously identified 
pegmatites11. 
  
The Company was particularly encouraged by the presence of a number of outstanding Potassium and Rubidium ratios (K/Rb) 
within the same area from portable XRF readings12. The K/Rb ratio is a useful tool for exploration by portable XRF which 
cannot detect elemental lithium. It is an indicator for fractionation of the pegmatite with the lower the ratio, the more fractionated 
the pegmatite.  
  
Highly fractionated pegmatites have a higher chance of lithium mineralisation and LCT pegmatites are often associated with 
K/Rb ratios in the 20-30 range. Continual calibration of LIBs readings and pXRF fractionation ratios compared to laboratory 
rock assay results is ongoing to refine the accuracy of these field tools.  
  
These results have narrowed the Company’s focus to the area to the north-east of the property.  
  

 
11 See James Bay Minerals announcement dated 15 November 2023 
12 See James Bay Minerals announcement dated 6 February 2024 
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Figure 13 – Rubidium and potassium ratios, XRF readings first pegmatite field. 
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Figure 14 – Channel and rock samples Li readings first pegmatite field. 
  

 
  

Figure 15 – Channel and rock samples Rb readings first pegmatite field. 
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Figure 16 – Rubidium and potassium ratios, XRF readings second pegmatite field. 

  
La Grande East Project - High-priority targets identified  
  
On the 28 March 2024, the Company announced the acquisition of the La Grande East Project. The La Grande East Project 
is situated approximately 15km from James Bay Minerals’ Aqua Property and includes 136 claims (62 claims acquired and 74 
claims staked), covering an area of 7,000 hectares along the Robert-Bourassa reservoir. 
  
Key attributes of the Project include: 
●  Two magnetic lows which are interpreted to trend into Patriot Battery Metals Corvette Project13. 
●  Initial reviews of the eastern portion of the property have identified multiple large white dyke-like features as viewed from 

satellite imagery. Some are more than 500m in length.  
●  The property sits less than 1km from the Transtaiga Highway, which allows for all year walk-up access.  
  
During the Period, the Company announced that 340 high-priority targets had been identified from desktop studies of the 
project14. Studies focused on magnetic lows (prospective zones) within the property which trend from east to west. Satellite 
imagery was then overlaid across the prospective zones focused on identifying white outcrops, which can correlate with 
pegmatite outcrops. Satellite imagery, which has been utilised to generate the potential pegmatite dyke targets, are shown in 
Figures 17 to 20 below. 
  
Subsequent to the end of the Period, the Company announced that it had commenced a field exploration program at the La 
Grande East Project comprising field mapping, rock chip sampling and channel sampling. 
  

 
  

Figure 16 – Government airborne geophysics images across the La Grande East Project. 
  

 
13 See James Bay Minerals ASX Announcement dated 28 March 2024 
14 See James Bay Minerals ASX Announcement dated 23 April 2024 



James Bay Minerals Limited 
Directors' report 
30 June 2024 
 
 

  

  
16 

 
  

Figure 17 – La Grande East pegmatite targets identified via satellite imagery. 
  

 
  

Figure 18 – La Grande East pegmatite targets identified via satellite imagery. 
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Figure 19 – La Grande East pegmatite targets identified via satellite imagery. 
  

 
  

Figure 20 – La Grande East pegmatite targets identified via satellite imagery. 
  
 
 



James Bay Minerals Limited 
Directors' report 
30 June 2024 
 
 

  

  
18 

 
Forward-looking statements  
This report may contain certain forward-looking statements, guidance, forecasts, estimates or projections in relation to future 
matters (Forward Statements) that involve risks and uncertainties, and which are provided as a general guide only. Forward 
Statements can generally be identified by the use of forward-looking words such as “anticipate”, “estimate”, “will”, “should”, 
“could”, “may”, “expects”, “plans”, “forecast”, “target” or similar expressions and include, but are not limited to, indications of, 
or guidance or outlook on, future earnings or financial position or performance of the Company. The Company can give no 
assurance that these expectations will prove to be correct. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-
looking statements. None of the Company, its directors, employees, agents or advisers represent or warrant that such Forward 
Statements will be achieved or prove to be correct or gives any warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy, completeness, 
likelihood of achievement or reasonableness of any Forward Statement contained in this report. Actual results may differ 
materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements due to many important factors, risks and uncertainties. 
The Company does not undertake any obligation to release publicly any revisions to any “forward- looking statement” to reflect 
events or circumstances after the date of this report, except as may be required under applicable laws.  
 
Cautionary Statement  
The information in this report that relates to prior Exploration Results is extracted from the Company’s Prospectus, dated 19 
July 2023, (Prospectus) and the ASX announcements dated 5 October 2023, 5 November 2023, 15 November 2023, 4 
December 2023, 6 February 2024, 15 February 2024, 28 March 2024, 23 April 2024 and 17 July 2024 (Original 
Announcements). The Company confirms that it is not aware of any new information or data that materially affects the 
information contained in the Prospectus and Original Announcements.
 
Significant changes in the state of affairs 
On 4 September 2023, the company closed the Offers under the Prospectus and completed the issue of:  
(a) 30,000,000 Shares under the Public Offer at an issue price $0.20 per Share; and  
(b) 9,000,000 Consideration Shares and 5,000,000 Performance Rights to South Shore Partnership Inc., Marty Huber and 
Mark Fekete (together, the Vendors). The vesting of the performance rights are subject to the satisfaction of specific non-
market based operational performance hurdles. 
  
These non-market based vesting performance hurdles apply to 100% of the Performance Rights. 
  
On 8 September 2023, the company was admitted to the official list of ASX. 
  
On 1 March 2024, following shareholder approval, the Company issued 3,000,000 performance rights to director, Andrew 
Dornan under the employee incentive plan whereby vesting is subject to continuous service and other non-market operational 
performance conditions.  
  
On 4 April 2024, the Company announced it had entered a Mining Claims Agreement with the Vendors to acquire a 100% 
interest in mining claims related to the La Grande East Project. The Agreement included initial and deferred consideration 
comprising cash and equity. The initial consideration comprised CAD$21,000 and the issue of 210,000 shares with a fair value 
of $30,450 ($0.145 per share). The deferred consideration is payable on or before 29 March 2026 and comprises CAD$30,000 
and 300,000 shares with a fair value of $43,500 ($0.145 per share).  
  
There were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group during the financial year. 
 
Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year 
No matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2024 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect the Group's 
operations, the results of those operations, or the Group's state of affairs in future financial years. 
 
Likely developments and expected results of operations 
Information on likely developments, future prospects and business strategies of the operations of the Group and the expected 
results of operations, not otherwise disclosed in this report, have not been included in this report because the Directors believe 
that the inclusion of such information would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Group.  
 
Environmental regulation 
The Group aims to pursue an exploration and evaluation program in line with its Principal Activities. Such exploration and 
evaluation activities will be subject to local, province-based and nationally-set environmental conditions relevant to James Bay 
in Quebec, Canada. 
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Risks 
(a) Economic risks 
General economic conditions, movements in interest and inflation rates, the prevailing global commodity prices and currency 
exchange rates may have an adverse effect on the Company’s exploration, development and production activities, as well as 
on its ability to fund those activities. 
As with any exploration or mining project, the economics are sensitive to metal and commodity prices. Commodity prices 
fluctuate and are affected by many factors beyond the control of the Company. Such factors include supply and demand 
fluctuations for minerals, technological advances, forward selling activities and other macro‐economic factors. These prices 
may fluctuate to a level where the proposed mining operations are not profitable. Should the Company achieve success 
leading to mineral production, the revenue it will derive through the sale of commodities also exposes potential income of the 
Company to commodity price and exchange rate risks. 
  
(b) Market conditions 
The market price of the Shares can fall as well as rise and may be subject to varied and unpredictable influences on the 
market for equities in general and resource exploration stocks in particular. 
 
Further, share market conditions may affect the value of the Company’s quoted Shares regardless of the Company’s operating 
performance. Share market conditions are affected by many factors such as: 
 
(i)           general economic outlook; 
(ii)          interest rates and inflation rates; 
(iii)         currency fluctuations; 
(iv)         changes in investor sentiment; 
(v)          the demand for, and supply of, capital; and 
(vi)         terrorism or other hostilities. 
 
Neither the Company nor the Directors warrant the future performance of the Company or any return on an investment in the 
Company. 
  
(c) Force majeure 
The Company’s Projects now or in the future may be adversely affected by risks outside the control of the Company including 
labour unrest, subversive activities or sabotage, fires, floods, explosions or other catastrophes. 
  
(d) Government and legal risk 
Changes in government, monetary policies, taxation and other laws can have a significant impact on the Company’s assets, 
operations and ultimately the financial performance of the Company and its Shares. Such changes are likely to be beyond the 
control of the Company and may affect industry profitability as well as the Company’s capacity to explore and mine. 
 
The Company is not aware of any reviews or changes that would affect the Projects. However, changes in community attitudes 
on matters such as taxation, competition policy and environmental issues may bring about reviews and possibly changes in 
government policies. There is a risk that such changes may affect the Company’s development plans or its rights and 
obligations in respect of its Projects. Any such government action may also require increased capital or operating expenditures 
and could prevent or delay certain operations by the Company. 
  
(e) Litigation risks 
The Company is exposed to possible litigation risks including native title claims, tenure disputes, environmental claims, 
occupational health and safety claims and employee claims. Further, the Company may be involved in disputes with other 
parties in the future which may result in litigation. Any such claim or dispute if proven, may impact adversely on the Company’s 
operations, financial performance and financial position. The Company and its subsidiaries are not currently engaged in any 
litigation.  
  
(f) Insurance risks 
The Company intends to insure its operations in accordance with industry practice. However, the Company is subject to a 
number of operational risks and may not be adequately insured for certain risks, including industrial and transportation 
accidents, catastrophic accidents, changes in the regulatory environment, natural occurrences or technical failures. The 
occurrence of an event that is not covered or fully covered by insurance could have a material adverse effect on the business, 
financial condition and results of the Company. Insurance against all risks associated with mining exploration and production 
is not always available and where available the costs can be prohibitive. 
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(g) Unforeseen expenditure risk 
Expenditure may need to be incurred that has not been taken into account by the Company. Although the Company is not 
aware of any such additional expenditure requirements, if such expenditure is subsequently incurred, this may adversely affect 
the expenditure proposals of the Company. 
  
(h) Climate change risks 
Climate change is a risk the Company has considered, particularly related to its operations in the mining industry. The climate 
change risks particularly attributable to the Company include: 
 
(i)           the emergence of new or expanded regulations associated with the transitioning to a lower‐carbon economy and 
market changes related to climate change mitigation. The Company may be impacted by changes to local or international 
compliance regulations related to climate change mitigation efforts, or by specific taxation or penalties for carbon emissions 
or environmental damage. These examples sit amongst an array of possible restraints on industry that may further impact the 
Company and its profitability. While the Company will endeavour to manage these risks and limit any consequential impacts, 
there can be no guarantee that the Company will not be impacted by these occurrences; and 
 
(ii)          climate change may cause certain physical and environmental risks that cannot be predicted by the Company, 
including events such as increased severity of weather patterns and incidence of extreme weather events and longer term 
physical risks such as shifting climate patterns. All these risks associated with climate change may significantly change the 
industry in which the Company operates. 
  
(i) Infectious diseases 
The outbreak of the coronavirus disease (COVID‐19) is having a material effect on global economic markets. The global 
economic outlook is facing uncertainty due to the pandemic, which has had and may continue to have a significant impact on 
capital markets. 
 
The Company’s Share price may be adversely affected by the economic uncertainty caused by COVID‐19. Further measures 
to limit the transmission of the virus implemented by governments around the world (such as travel bans and quarantining) 
may adversely impact the Company’s operations and may interrupt the Company carrying out its contractual obligations or 
cause disruptions to supply chains.  
 
Information on Directors 
Name:  Andrew Dornan 
Title:  Executive Director 
Qualifications:  Holds a tertiary qualification in business. 
Experience and expertise:  Andrew Dornan has 18 years' experience as senior commercial management within 

various major and mid-tier international mining organisations including Pilbara Minerals, 
Tianqi Lithium (consultant), Fortescue Metals Group, Newmont Australia, and Rio Tinto. 

Other current directorships:   
Former directorships (last 3 years):  Sun Silver Limited (ASX: SS1) from 20 November 2023 to 8 April 2024.  
Interests in shares:  7,906,750 
Interests in performance rights:  3,000,000 
  
Name:  Gerard O'Donovan 
Title:  Non-Executive Chair 
Qualifications:  Holds Bachelor of Engineering (Civil & Structural, Honours) and has also carried out 

further studies in the fields of Sustainability, Circular Economy & Social Governance. 
Experience and expertise:  Has extensive lithium and mine development with almost 15 years of experience in 

managing large-scale construction and mining development projects & operations 
across various commodities including lithium, copper, and iron ore. 
Previously MD of ASX listed Battery Age Minerals (formerly Pathfinder Resources). He 
was the project manager of Pilbara Minerals Ltd's Pilgangoora project, successfully 
leading the development, and bringing into operation, the Pilgangoora lithium-tantalum 
Stage 1 mine and processing facility. He also worked with Atlas iron, Fortescue Metals 
Group, Australian Premium Iron JV, and Rio Tinto's Winu Copper Gold Project 

Other current directorships:  Sun Silver Limited (ASX: SS1) - appointed 2 February 2024 
Former directorships (last 3 years):  Battery Age Minerals Ltd (ASX: BM8) - from 10 August 2023 to 9 November 2023. 
Interests in shares:  1,026,749 
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Name:  Dean Ercegovic 
Title:  Non-Executive Director 
Experience and expertise:  Dean Ercegovic has over 20 years' experience in engineering and general contracting 

in the minerals resource industries throughout Australia, Canada, and the USA. He was 
the founding Director and Chief Operating Officer of Primero Group where he spent over 
11 years. Primero now operates in multiple regions globally (including Quebec) and is 
an industry leader in the design, construction and operations of Lithium processing 
facilities. 

Other current directorships:  Sun Silver Limited (ASX: SS1) - appointed 8 April 2024 
Former directorships (last 3 years):  Nil. 
Interests in shares:  200,000 
  
Name:  Judith Baker 
Title:  Non-Executive Director 
Qualifications:  Holds a Bachelor of Applied Science (Engineering and Mineral Resource Exploration) 

and  an MBA. 
Experience and expertise:  Judith Baker has 30 years' experience within mining organisations and of note TSX 

listed Canadian lithium companies at a director level. She spent 8 years as a director of 
Nemaska Lithium Inc in Quebec and was  the founding CEO/Director  of  Canada Lithium 
Corporation. 

Other current directorships:  Nil. 
Former directorships (last 3 years):  Nil. 
Interests in shares:  100,000 
  
'Other current directorships' quoted above are current directorships for listed entities only and excludes directorships of all 
other types of entities, unless otherwise stated. 
  
'Former directorships (last 3 years)' quoted above are directorships held in the last 3 years for listed entities only and excludes 
directorships of all other types of entities, unless otherwise stated. 
 
Company secretary 
James Doyle 
  
Mr Doyle is an experienced company secretary and corporate advisor with over 20 years’ experience advising Australian and 
international private and public company boards across a number of sectors including resources, financial services, industrials 
and information technology. Mr Doyle has extensive experience providing corporate governance and compliance support as 
well as managing and executing corporate mandates including equity and debt capital raising, IPO’s, ASX listings, mergers 
and acquisitions and private equity transactions. Mr Doyle has a comprehensive knowledge of the ASX Listing Rules and the 
Corporations Act and currently serves as company secretary to several ASX-listed companies. 
 
Meetings of Directors 
The number of meetings of the Company's Board of Directors ('the Board') held during the year ended 30 June 2024, and the 
number of meetings attended by each Director were: 
  
  Full Board 
  Attended  Held 
     
Andrew Dornan  5  5 
Gerard O’Donovan  5  5 
Dean Ercegovic  5  5 
Judith Baker  5  5 
  
Held: represents the number of meetings held during the time the Director held office. 
  
Board committees 
In view of the size and resources available to the Company, it is not considered that separate board committees will add any 
substance to the governance process. The Board as a whole will assume responsibilities normally allocated to the committees.  
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Inaugural Remuneration report (audited) 
The remuneration report details the key management personnel remuneration arrangements for the Group, in accordance 
with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and its Regulations. 
  
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 
activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including all Directors. 
  
The remuneration report is set out under the following main headings: 
●  Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration 
●  Details of remuneration 
●  Service agreements 
●  Share-based compensation 
●  Additional disclosures relating to key management personnel 
 
Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration 
The Board reviews and approves the Company’s remuneration policy in order to ensure that the Company is able to attract 
and retain executives and Directors who will create value for Shareholders, having regard to the amount considered to be 
commensurate for an entity of the Company’s size and level of activity as well as the relevant Directors’ time, commitment 
and responsibility. 
  
The remuneration of any Executive Director will be decided by the Board, without the affected Executive Director participating 
in that decision-making process. 
  
The Board may obtain external advice from independent consultants in determining the Company’s remuneration practices, 
including remuneration levels, where considered appropriate. No remuneration consultants were engaged during the reporting 
period. 
  
In addition, subject to any necessary Shareholder approval, a Director may be paid fees or other amounts as the Directors 
determine where a Director performs special duties or otherwise performs services outside the scope of the ordinary duties of 
a Director (e.g. non-cash performance incentives such as options). 
  
The Board is also responsible for reviewing any employee incentive and equity-based plans including the appropriateness of 
performance hurdles and total payments proposed. The reward framework is designed to align executive reward to 
shareholders' interests.  
  
Non-executive Directors' remuneration 
The total maximum non-executive director fee pool is initially set by the Board and subsequent variation is by ordinary 
resolution of Shareholders in general meeting in accordance with the Constitution, the Corporations Act and the ASX Listing 
Rules, as applicable. The current non-executive director fee pool, which excludes non-cash performance incentives such as 
options and performance rights, has been set at an amount not to exceed $500,000 per annum. The determination of individual 
remuneration within that maximum will be made by the Board having regard to the inputs and value to the Company of the 
respective contributions by each non-executive director.  
  
Executive remuneration 
The Group aims to reward executives including directors and other key management personnel based on their position and 
responsibility, with a level and mix of remuneration which has both fixed and variable components.  
  
The executive remuneration and reward framework may include the following components: 
●  base salary and non-monetary benefits 
●  short-term performance incentives 
●  share-based payments 
●  other remuneration such as superannuation and long service leave 
  
The combination of these comprises the executive's total remuneration. 
  
Fixed remuneration, consisting of base salary, superannuation and non-monetary benefits, will be reviewed annually. 
  
Executives may receive their fixed remuneration in the form of cash or other fringe benefits (for example motor vehicle benefits) 
where it does not create any additional costs to the Group and provides additional value to the executive. 
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Aside from the employee securities incentive plan there are no formal short-term incentive (STI) or Long-term incentive (LTI) 
programs in place. 
  
Employee Securities Incentive Plan (Incentive Plan) 
The Board has adopted an lncentive Plan allowing eligible participants to be issued securities in the Company. 
  
The purpose of the plan is to: 
(i)  assist in the reward, retention, and motivation of Eligible Participants; 
(ii)  link the reward of Eligible Participants to Shareholder value creation; and 
(iii)  align the interests of Eligible Participants with shareholders by providing an opportunity to receive an equity interest. 
 
Details of remuneration 
 
Amounts of remuneration 
Details of the remuneration of key management personnel of the Group are set out in the following tables. 
  
The key management personnel of the Group consisted of the following Directors of James Bay Minerals Limited and the 
following persons: 

 

 

Short-term benefits 

Post-
employment 

benefits 

 
Long-term 
benefits 

 Share-
based 

payments 

 

 
                     

 
 
Cash salary 

 
Cash 

 
Non- 

 
Super- 

 Long 
service 

 
Equity- 

 
 

  and fees  bonus  monetary  annuation  leave  settled  Total 
30 Jun 2024  (12 months)  $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 
               
Non-Executive Directors:               
Gerard O'Donovan*  54,566  -  -  -  -  -  54,566 
Judith Baker  44,173  -  -  -  -  -  44,173 
Dean Ercegovic  34,835  -  -  3,832  -  -  38,667 
               
Executive Directors:               
Andrew Dornan  222,600  -  -  -  -  144,000  366,600 
               
Other Key Management 
Personnel: 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Daniel Loughnan (CFO)  117,336  -  -  -  -  -  117,336 
  473,511  -  -  3,832  -  144,000  621,343 
  

 

 

Short-term benefits 

Post-
employment 

benefits 

 
Long-term 
benefits 

 Share-
based 

payments 

 

 
                     

 
 
Cash salary 

 
Cash 

 
Non- 

 
Super- 

 Long 
service 

 
Equity- 

 
 

  and fees  bonus  monetary  annuation  leave  settled  Total* 
 30 Jun 2023 (13 months)  $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 
               
Non-Executive Directors:               
Gerard O'Donovan*  -  -  -  -  -  100,000  100,000 
               
Executive Directors:               
Andrew Dornan*   135,000  -  -  -  -  -  135,000 
  135,000  -  -  -  -  100,000  235,000 
  
*  The director fee entitlements for the year ended 30 June 2023 were settled during the current reporting period, Director 

Andrew Dorman's 2023 entitlements were settled as a cash payment and on 7 July 2023 Director Gerard O'Donovan's 
entitlements were settled by the issue of 500,000 ordinary shares at fair value of $0.20 per share.  
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The directors consider that none of the remuneration provided to key management personnel during the year, including the 
equity-based remuneration, was performance related. 
  
The proportion of remuneration linked to performance and the fixed proportion are as follows: 
  
  Fixed remuneration At risk - STI At risk - LTI 

Name 
 30 Jun 2024  

(12 months) 
 

 30 Jun 2023  
 30 Jun 2024  

(12 months) 
 

 30 Jun 2023  
 30 Jun 2024  

(12 months) 
 

 30 Jun 2023  
             
Non-Executive Directors:             
Gerard O'Donovan  100%   -  -  -  -  - 
Dean Ercegovic  100%   100%   -  -  -  - 
Judith Baker  100%   -  -  -  -  - 
             
Executive Directors:             
Andrew Dornan  61%   100%   -  -  39%   - 
Daniel Loughnan (CFO)  -  100%   -  -  -  - 
             
Other Key Management 
Personnel: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Daniel Loughnan (CFO)  100%   -  -  -  -  - 
 
Service agreements 
Remuneration and other terms of employment for key management personnel are formalised in service agreements. Details 
of these agreements are as follows: 
  
Name:  Andrew Dornan 
Title:  Executive Director 
Agreement commenced:  18 April 2023 
Term of agreement:  On going 
Details:  A consultancy agreement was entered into with the Company. The material terms and 

conditions include an annual fee of $90,000 (excluding GST) and a day rate of $1,800 
(excluding GST for services provided outside the scope of the consultancy agreement. 

  
Name:  Gerard O'Donovan 
Title:  Non-Executive Chair 
Agreement commenced:  25 June 2023 
Term of agreement:  On going 
Details:  A letter of appointment was entered into with the Company. The material terms and 

conditions include an annual fee of $68,000 (including statutory superannuation) for 
services provided to the Company and issued 500,000 Shares in consideration for his 
appointment as a Director of the Company.  

  
Name:  Dean Ercegovic 
Title:  Non-Executive Director 
Agreement commenced:  26 June 2023 
Term of agreement:  On going 
Details:  A letter of appointment was entered into with the Company. The material terms and 

conditions include an annual fee of $48,000 (including statutory superannuation). 
  
Name:  Judith Baker 
Title:  Non-Executive Director 
Agreement commenced:  7 June 2023 
Term of agreement:  On going 
Details:  A letter of appointment was entered into with the Company. The material terms and 

conditions include an annual fee of $48,000 (including statutory superannuation). 
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Name:  Daniel Loughnan 
Title:  Chief Financial Officer (resigned as a Director 8 September 2023) 
Agreement commenced:  18 April 2023  
Term of agreement:  Ongoing 
Details:  A consultancy agreement was entered into with the Company. The material terms and 

conditions include an estimated fee of $35,000 (exclusive of GST) in return for CFO and 
consultancy services for the period commencing 20 February 2023 to the date of 
admission. From the date of admission, Danpalo Group will receive $8,000 per month 
(exclusive of GST) in return for his services as chief financial officer. 

  
The company may terminate Consultancy Agreements with one months’ notice. The consultant may may terminate the 
Consultancy Agreement by giving the Company one months’ notice or immediately if the consultant ceases to be a Director 
of the Company. 
  
The company may terminate Executive Services Agreements with one months’ notice. The executive may may terminate the 
Agreement by giving the Company one months’ notice or immediately if the executive ceases to be a Director of the Company. 
  
Key management personnel have no entitlement to termination payments in the event of removal for misconduct. 
 
Share-based compensation 
 
Issue of shares 
Details of shares issued to Directors and other key management personnel as part of compensation during the year ended 
30 June 2024 are set out below: 
  
Name  Date  Shares  Issue price  $ 
         
Gerard O'Donovan*  07/07/2023  500,000  $0.200   100,000 
  
*  The shares were issued to settle Director Gerard O'Donovan's director fee entitlements for the year ended 30 June 2023. 
  
Options 
There were no options over ordinary shares issued to Directors and other key management personnel as part of compensation 
that were outstanding as at 30 June 2024. 
  
There were no options over ordinary shares granted to or vested by Directors and other key management personnel as part 
of compensation during the year ended 30 June 2024. 
  
Performance rights 
The terms and conditions of each grant of performance rights over ordinary shares affecting remuneration of Directors and 
other key management personnel in this financial year or future reporting years are as follows: 
  
  Number of        Share price  Fair value 
  rights    Vesting date and    hurdle for  per right 
Name  granted  Grant date  exercisable date  Expiry date  vesting  at grant date 
             
Andrew Dornan *  750,000  01/03/2024  11/09/2024  28/02/2028  $0.000  $0.160  
Andrew Dornan *  750,000  01/03/2024  11/09/2025  28/02/2028  $0.000  $0.160  
Andrew Dornan   750,000  01/03/2024  **  28/02/2028  $0.000  $0.000 
Andrew Dornan  750,000  01/03/2024  **  28/02/2028  $0.000  $0.000 
  
*  Tranche 1 and Tranche 2: The performance conditions for Tranche 1 and Tranche 2 are 12 months and 24 months 

continuous service from the date of listing respectively. 
**  Vesting and exercisability is subject to the satisfaction of the following non-market operational performance conditions: 

- Tranche 3 - The Company completing a maiden drill program of not less than 2,000 meters on any of its properties and 
- Tranche 4 - The Company announcing a drill intercept of at least 20 meters with a grade of not less than 1 % Li2O on 
any of its properties. 

  
Performance rights granted carry no dividend or voting rights. 
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Additional disclosures relating to key management personnel 
 
Shareholding 
The number of shares in the Company held during the financial year by each Director and other members of key management 
personnel of the Group, including their personally related parties, is set out below: 
  
  Balance at   Received     Balance at  
  the start of   as part of     the end of  
  the year  remuneration  Additions*  the year 
Ordinary shares         
Andrew Dornan  7,500,000  -  406,750  7,906,750 
Gerard O'Donovan  500,000  500,000  26,749  1,026,749 
Dean Ercegovic  -  -  200,000  200,000 
Judith Baker  -  -  100,000  100,000 
Daniel Loughnan  1,250,000  -  -  1,250,000 
  9,250,000  500,000  733,499  10,483,499 
  
*  Additions include IPO participation and on-market purchases 
  
Performance rights holding 
The number of performance rights over ordinary shares in the Company held during the financial year by each Director and 
other members of key management personnel of the Group, including their personally related parties, is set out below: 
  
  Balance at       Expired/   Balance at  
  the start of       forfeited/   the end of  
  the year  Granted  Vested  other  the year 
Performance rights over ordinary shares           
Andrew Dornan (tranche 1)*  -  750,000  -  -  750,000 
Andrew Dornan (tranche 2)*  -  750,000  -  -  750,000 
Andrew Dornan (tranche 3)*  -  750,000  -  -  750,000 
Andrew Dornan (tranche 4)*  -  750,000  -  -  750,000 
  -  3,000,000  -  -  3,000,000 
  
*  Vesting terms are set out below under "Shares under performance rights" 
 
This concludes the remuneration report, which has been audited. 
 
Shares under option 
There were no unissued ordinary shares of James Bay Minerals Limited under option outstanding at the date of this report. 
 
Shares under performance rights 
Unissued ordinary shares of James Bay Minerals Limited under performance rights at the date of this report are as follows: 
  
    Exercise   Number  
Grant date and holder  Expiry date  price  under rights 
       
04-Sep-23 - Vendors (a)     04-Sep-28  $0.000  5,000,000 
01-Mar-24 - Andrew Dorman (director) (b)  28-Feb-28  $0.000  750,000 
01-Mar-24 - Andrew Dorman (director) (c)  28-Feb-28  $0.000  750,000 
01-Mar-24 - Andrew Dorman (director) (d)  28-Feb-28  $0.000  750,000 
01-Mar-24 - Andrew Dorman (director) (e)  28-Feb-28  $0.000  750,000 
       
      8,000,000 
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The performance rights are subject to the following vesting conditions: 
(a)  Rights are subject to the Company achieving a drill intercept of 20m or greater of at least 1% Li2O within 5 years from 

the date of JBY’s admission to the official list of ASX. The Rights will each vest upon the Company successfully 
announcing the drill intercept on the ASX Market Announcements Platform. Rights will only vest in relation to the first drill 
intercept on any of the Troilus, Aero-Aqua and Joule properties respectively, and shall not apply to subsequent drill 
intercepts or if multiple drill intercepts are achieved across more than one property 

(b)  Tranche 1 - 750,000 performance rights - 12 months continuous service as a Director from date of listing. 
(c)  Tranche 2 - 750,000 performance rights - 24 months continuous service as a Director from date of listing. 
(d)  Tranche 3 - 750,000 performance rights - The Company completing a maiden drill program of not less than 2,000 meters 

on any of its properties. 
(e)  Tranche 4 - 750,000 performance rights - The Company announcing a drill intercept of at least 20 meters with a grade 

of not less than 1 % Li2O on any of its properties. 
  
No person entitled to exercise the performance rights had or has any right by virtue of the performance right to participate in 
any share issue of the Company or of any other body corporate. 
 
Shares issued on the exercise of options 
There were no ordinary shares of James Bay Minerals Limited issued on the exercise of options during the year ended 30 
June 2024 and up to the date of this report. 
 
Shares issued on the exercise of performance rights 
There were no ordinary shares of James Bay Minerals Limited issued on the exercise of performance rights during the year 
ended 30 June 2024 and up to the date of this report. 
 
Indemnity and insurance of officers 
The Company has indemnified the Directors and executives of the Company for costs incurred, in their capacity as a Director 
or executive, for which they may be held personally liable, except where there is a lack of good faith. 
  
During the financial year, the Company did not pay a premium to insure either its directors or executives for any liability to the 
extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. 
 
Indemnity and insurance of auditor 
The Company has not, during or since the end of the financial year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify the auditor of the 
Company or any related entity against a liability incurred by the auditor. 
  
During the financial year, the Company has not paid a premium in respect of a contract to insure the auditor of the Company 
or any related entity. 
 
Proceedings on behalf of the Company 
No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on behalf 
of the Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility 
on behalf of the Company for all or part of those proceedings. 
 
Auditor 
William Buck Audit (VIC) Pty Ltd continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001. 
 
Non-audit services 
There were no non-audit services provided during the financial year by the auditor. 
 
Officers of the Company who are former partners of William Buck Audit (VIC) Pty Ltd 
There are no officers of the Company who are former partners of William Buck Audit (VIC) Pty Ltd. 
 
Auditor's independence declaration 
A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out 
immediately after this Directors' report. 
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This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors, pursuant to the Corporations Act 2001. 

On behalf of the Directors 

___________________________ 
Andrew Dornan 
Director 

30 September 2024 



 

 

 

   

Level 20, 181 William Street, Melbourne VIC 3000 
 

+61 3 9824 8555 

 

vic.info@williambuck.com 

williambuck.com.au 

 

William Buck is an association of firms, each trading under the name of William Buck 
across Australia and New Zealand with affiliated offices worldwide. 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.  
 

Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 307C of 
the Corporations Act 2001 

To the directors of James Bay Minerals Limited 

As lead auditor for the audit of James Bay Minerals Limited for the year ended 30 June 2024, I declare that, 
to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been: 

— no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in 

relation to the audit; and 

— no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

 

This declaration is in respect of James Bay Minerals Limited and the entities it controlled during the year.  

 

 

 

 

William Buck Audit (Vic) Pty Ltd 

ABN 59 116 151 136 

 

 

 

 

J. C. Luckins 

Director 

Melbourne, 30 September 2024 
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General information 

The financial statements cover James Bay Minerals Limited as a Group consisting of James Bay Minerals Limited and the 
entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the year. The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is 
James Bay Minerals Limited's presentation currency. James Bay Minerals Limited's functional currency is Canadian dollars. 

James Bay Minerals Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its registered office and 
principal place of business is: 

Danpalo Group Pty Ltd 

Suite 1 1 Tully Road 
East Perth WA 6004 

A description of the nature of the Group's operations and its principal activities are included in the Directors' report, which is 
not part of the financial statements. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue, in accordance with a resolution of Directors, on 30 September 2024. The 
Directors have the power to amend and reissue the financial statements. 
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Other income 
Interest income 50,300 -  
Government grants  (Canadian mining tax credits) 888,279 -  

Expenses 
Corporate expenses 4 (1,266,453)  (138,100) 
Exploration and evaluation costs (3,807,179)  (279,703) 
Employment and consulting (705,624)  (241,910) 

Loss before income tax expense (4,840,677)  (659,713) 

Income tax expense -  -  

Loss after income tax expense for the year (4,840,677)  (659,713) 

Other comprehensive loss 

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 
Foreign currency translation (64,184)  (7,590) 

Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (64,184)  (7,590) 

Total comprehensive loss for the year (4,904,861)  (667,303) 

Cents Cents 

Basic earnings per share 18 (9.04)  (9.61) 
Diluted earnings per share 18 (9.04)  (9.61) 
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Assets 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 2,113,306 285,736 
Trade and other receivables 5 985,861 1,440 
Total current assets 3,099,167 287,176 

Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 6 70,789 -  
Total non-current assets 70,789 -  

Total assets 3,169,956 287,176 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 7 430,277 465,479 
Total current liabilities 430,277 465,479 

Non-current liabilities 
Deferred consideration payable 33,516 -  
Total non-current liabilities 33,516 -  

Total liabilities 463,793 465,479 

Net assets/(liabilities) 2,706,163 (178,303) 

Equity 
Issued capital 8 8,090,827 489,000 
Reserves 115,726 (7,590) 
Accumulated losses (5,500,390)  (659,713) 

Total equity/(deficiency) 2,706,163 (178,303) 
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Issued 
Share-based 

payments 

Foreign 
currency 

translation Accumulated 
Total 

deficiency in 
equity capital reserve reserve losses 

Consolidated (for the 13 months ended 30 June 
2023) $ $ $ $ $ 

Balance at 1 June 2022 10,000 - - - 10,000 

Loss after income tax expense for the year - - - (659,713)  (659,713) 
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of 
tax - - (7,590) - (7,590)

Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (7,590)  (659,713)  (667,303) 

Transactions with owners in their capacity as 
owners: 
Contributions of equity, net of transaction costs 
(note 8) 479,000 - - - 479,000 

Balance at 30 June 2023 489,000 - (7,590) (659,713)  (178,303) 

Issued 
Share-based 

payments 

Foreign 
currency 

translation Accumulated 
Total equity capital reserve reserve losses 

Consolidated $ $ $ $ $ 

Balance at 1 July 2023 489,000 - (7,590) (659,713)  (178,303) 

Loss after income tax expense for the year - - - (4,840,677)  (4,840,677) 
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of 
tax - - (64,184) - (64,184)

Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (64,184)  (4,840,677)  (4,904,861) 

Transactions with owners in their capacity as 
owners: 
Contributions of equity (note 8) 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000 
Shares issued to Vendors (note 8) 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000 

- - - - - 
Shares issued to a director (note 8) 100,000 - - - 100,000 
Vesting of share-based payments (note 19)  - 144,000 - - 144,000 
Shares issued for acquisition of tenements' 
(note 8) 30,450 - - - 30,450 
Shares to be issued as deferred consideration 
for acquisition of tenements (note 19)  - 43,500 - - 43,500 
Capital raising costs (328,623)  - - - (328,623) 

Balance at 30 June 2024 8,090,827 187,500 (71,774)  (5,500,390)  2,706,163 
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Cash flows from operating activities 
Payments for exploration and evaluation costs (2,258,887)  (162,748) 
Payments for corporate costs (including employment costs) (1,549,486)  (40,516) 

(3,808,373)  (203,264) 
Interest received 50,300 -  

Net cash used in operating activities 16 (3,758,073)  (203,264) 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Payments for property, plant and equipment 6 (85,734)  -  

Net cash used in investing activities (85,734)  -  

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from issue of shares 8 6,000,000 489,000 
Share issue transaction costs (328,623)  -  

Net cash from financing activities 5,671,377 489,000 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,827,570 285,736 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 285,736 -  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 2,113,306 285,736 
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Note 1. Material accounting policy information 

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies have 
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

New or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted 
The Group has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period. 

The adoption of these Accounting Standards and Interpretations did not have any significant impact on the financial 
performance or position of the Group. 

Any new or amended Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early adopted. 

The following Accounting Standards and Interpretations are most relevant to the Group: 

Going concern 
The financial report has been prepared on the going concern basis, which assumes continuity of normal business activities 
and the realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. 

For the period ended 30 June 2024, the Group incurred a net loss of $4,840,677, had operating cash outflows of $3,758,073 
and as at 30 June 2024 had net current assets of $2,668,890, net assets of $2,706,163 and cash and cash equivalents 
balance of $2,113,306. As at 30 June 2024, further additional funding was needed to complete planned activities. These 
conditions indicate a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Group's ability to continue as a going 
concern and therefore it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. 

The Directors determined that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate in preparing the financial report. 
The assessment of the going concern assumption is based on the group’s cash flow projections and application of a number 
of judgements and estimates, resulting in the conclusion of a range of reasonably possible scenarios. Included in the Directors 
going concern cash flow assessment is that further funds can be secured if required by a combination of capital raisings and 
deferment of forecast payments for exploration and evaluation activities. Accordingly, the Financial Report has been prepared 
on the basis that the Group can continue normal business activities and meet its commitments as and when they fall due, and 
the realisation of assets and liabilities in the ordinary course of business. 

Basis of preparation 
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate 
for for-profit oriented entities. These financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as 
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ('IASB'). 

Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 

Critical accounting estimates 
The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires 
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a 
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial 
statements, are disclosed in note 2. 

Parent entity information 
In accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, these financial statements present the results of the Group only. Supplementary 
information about the parent entity is disclosed in note 14. 

Interest 
Interest revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the 
amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, 
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the 
net carrying amount of the financial asset. 
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Note 1. Material accounting policy information (continued) 
 
Government grants 
Government grants are recognised at a point in time when there is reasonable assurance that both the grant will be received 
and conditions will be met.  
  
Exploration and evaluation 
Exploration and evaluation expenditure is currently expensed through the statement of profit and loss. 
  
Share-based payments 
  
Equity-settled and cash-settled share-based compensation benefits may be provided to employees and suppliers. 
  
Equity-settled transactions are awards of shares, options and performance rights over shares, that are provided to employees 
and suppliers in exchange for the rendering of services. Cash-settled transactions are awards of cash for the exchange of 
services, where the amount of cash is determined by reference to the share price. 
  
The cost of equity-settled transactions are measured at fair value on grant date. Fair value is independently determined using 
either the Binomial or Black-Scholes option pricing model that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, 
the impact of dilution, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend 
yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option, together with non-vesting conditions that do not determine whether 
the Group receives the services that entitle the employees to receive payment. No account is taken of any other vesting 
conditions. 
  
The cost of equity-settled transactions are recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity over the vesting 
period. The cumulative charge to profit or loss is calculated based on the grant date fair value of the award, the best estimate 
of the number of awards that are likely to vest and the expired portion of the vesting period. The amount recognised in profit 
or loss for the period is the cumulative amount calculated at each reporting date less amounts already recognised in previous 
periods. 
  
The cost of cash-settled transactions is initially, and at each reporting date until vested, determined by applying either the 
Binomial or Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into consideration the terms and conditions on which the award was 
granted. The cumulative charge to profit or loss until settlement of the liability is calculated as follows: 
●  during the vesting period, the liability at each reporting date is the fair value of the award at that date multiplied by the 

expired portion of the vesting period. 
●  from the end of the vesting period until settlement of the award, the liability is the full fair value of the liability at the 

reporting date. 
  
All changes in the liability are recognised in profit or loss. The ultimate cost of cash-settled transactions is the cash paid to 
settle the liability. 
  
Market conditions are taken into consideration in determining fair value. Therefore any awards subject to market conditions 
are considered to vest irrespective of whether or not that market condition has been met, provided all other conditions are 
satisfied. 
  
If equity-settled awards are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the modification has not been made. An 
additional expense is recognised, over the remaining vesting period, for any modification that increases the total fair value of 
the share-based compensation benefit as at the date of modification. 
  
If the non-vesting condition is within the control of the Group or employee, the failure to satisfy the condition is treated as a 
cancellation. If the condition is not within the control of the Group or employee and is not satisfied during the vesting period, 
any remaining expense for the award is recognised over the remaining vesting period, unless the award is forfeited. 
  
If equity-settled awards are cancelled, it is treated as if it has vested on the date of cancellation, and any remaining expense 
is recognised immediately. If a new replacement award is substituted for the cancelled award, the cancelled and new award 
is treated as if they were a modification. 
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Note 1. Material accounting policy information (continued) 

Assessment of non-market performance conditions attached to performance rights 
Performance rights granted with specific non-market vesting conditions are not recognised as share based payments until the 
directors can allocate a probability against achieving the non-market vesting conditions. 

New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yet mandatory or early adopted 
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet mandatory, 
have not been early adopted by the Group for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2024. The Group has not yet 
assessed the impact of these new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations. 

Note 2. Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation 
to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its judgements, estimates and 
assumptions on historical experience and on other various factors, including expectations of future events, management 
believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting judgements and estimates will seldom equal the 
related actual results. The judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities (refer to the respective notes) within the next financial year are discussed 
below. 

Share-based payment transactions 
The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity 
instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by using either the Binomial or Black-Scholes 
model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted. The accounting estimates and 
assumptions relating to equity-settled share-based payments would have no impact on the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next annual reporting period but may impact profit or loss and equity. 

Apportionment of IPO costs between equity and the profit or loss 
Costs directly attributable to the issue of new equity are considered by directors to also form part of the net cost of that equity. 
The IPO transaction involved costs both associated with the issue of new equity and with the quotation of existing equity. The 
directors evaluated those costs and have apportioned those costs, as appropriate to either equity or are charged directly to 
the profit or loss. 

Assessment of non-market performance conditions attached to performance rights 
During the reporting period a total of 6,500,000 five year performance rights were issued to the Vendors and CEO with specific 
non-market vesting conditions  The vesting conditions will be satisfied when the company completes a maiden drill program 
of not less than 2,000 meters on any of its properties (750,000 rights), and announces a drill intercept of at least 20 meters 
with a grade of not less than 1 % Li2O on any of its properties (5,750,000 rights). 

The granting of these performance rights have not given rise to a share based payment as the directors have determined that 
is too early to allocate a probability against achieving the specific non-market vesting conditions. 

Recovery of deferred tax assets 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences only if the Group considers it is probable that future 
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Presently the Group has incurred losses 
from its operations in all tax jurisdictions that may be potentially available to be applied against assessable income in the 
future. Given the uncertainty as to when or if this occurs, the directors have decided not to recognise any deferred tax assets 
that may be represented by those losses. 

The Group has estimated unutilised tax losses of $2,880,000 (2023: $555,000) resulting in a net potential deferred tax asset 
of $658,000 (2023: $125,000) calculated using the prevailing Canadian and Australian corporate income tax rates. 

Exploration and evaluation costs 
The directors have elected to expense all costs associated with the exploration and evaluation of their projects. 
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Note 2. Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued) 

Mine rehabilitation provision 
The Group has considered whether a provision for rehabilitation of any claims is required. The directors do not consider that 
such a provision is necessary due to the fact that rehabilitation is being undertaken on a progressive basis. Whilst the Group 
is in exploration phase it cannot reliably estimate scope and costs of rehabilitation work that will need to be undertaken. 

Note 3. Operating segments 

The chief operating decision makers, being the Company's directors, consider that the Company operates in one reportable 
segment being the exploration and evaluation of lithium resources in the James Bay region of Quebec; Canada. 

Note 4. Corporate expenses 

Consolidated 
30 Jun 2024  
(12 months) 

 30 Jun 2023  
(13 months) 

$ $ 

Advertising and promotion 267,339 -  
Professional services 398,947 96,800 
Depreciation and amortisation 14,945 -  
Listing, filing and registry  53,837 -  
Occupancy 64,800 41,200 
Travel 114,898 -  
IPO costs 331,594 -  
Other 20,093 100 

1,266,453 138,100 

Note 5. Trade and other receivables 

Consolidated 
30 Jun 2024  30 Jun 2023 

$  $ 

Current assets 
Canadian tax credits 874,018 -  
Receivable for goods and services and value-added tax credits 111,843 1,440 

985,861 1,440 

Note 6. Property, plant and equipment 

Consolidated 
30 Jun 2024  30 Jun 2023 

$  $ 

Non-current assets 
Plant and equipment 85,734 -  
Less: Accumulated depreciation (14,945)  -  

70,789 -
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Note 6. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Reconciliations 
Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial year are set out 
below: 

Plant and 
equipment 

Total 
Consolidated $ $ 

Balance at 1 July 2023 - - 

- - 
Additions 85,734 85,734 
Depreciation expense (14,945)  (14,945) 

Balance at 30 June 2024 70,789 70,789 

Note 7. Trade and other payables 

Consolidated 
30 Jun 2024  30 Jun 2023 

$  $ 

Current liabilities 
Trade payables 383,552 154,279 
Accrued expenses 30,555 76,200 
Payable to related parties (a) 16,170 235,000 

430,277 465,479 

Consolidated 
30 Jun 2024 30 Jun 2023 

(a) Payable to related parties $ $ 

Director fee entitlements 
** Andrew Dornan 16,170 135,000 
** Gerard O'Donovan - 100,000

16,170 235,000 

Note 8. Issued capital 

Consolidated 
30 Jun 2024 30 Jun 2023 30 Jun 2024 30 Jun 2023 

Shares Shares $ $ 

Ordinary shares - fully paid 60,710,000 21,000,000 8,090,827 489,000 
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Note 8. Issued capital (continued) 

Movements in ordinary share capital 

Details  Date Shares Issue price $ 

Balance  1 June 2022 1,000,000 10,000 
Grant and issue of founder shares  3 March 2023 16,800,000 $0.100 168,000 
Issue of shares  21 April 2023 100,000 $0.100 1,000 
Issue of shares  18 May 2023 3,100,000 $0.100 310,000 

Balance  30 June 2023 21,000,000 489,000 
Shares issued to Director, Gerard O'Donovan(a)  7 July 2023 500,000 $0.200 100,000 
Consideration shares issued to vendors upon IPO(a) (b)  11 September 2023 9,000,000 $0.200 1,800,000 
Shares issue pursuant to IPO  11 September 2023 30,000,000 $0.200 6,000,000 
Shares issued to vendors as consideration for 
additional  claims(a) (b) 4 April 2024 210,000 $0.145 30,450 
Capital raising costs - $0.000 (328,623) 

Balance  30 June 2024 60,710,000 8,090,827 

(a) These share-based payments were granted and issued on or around the IPO completion date and have been fair
valued at the same price as the IPO shares.

(b) The fair value of shares issued to vendors form part of exploration and evaluation expenses.

Ordinary shares 
Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on the winding up of the Company in proportion 
to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. The fully paid ordinary shares have no par value and the Company 
does not have a limited amount of authorised capital. 

Upon a poll every member present at a meeting in person or by proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll each share shall 
have one vote. 

Capital risk management 
The Group's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can provide 
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimum capital structure to reduce the cost 
of capital. 

Capital is regarded as total equity, as recognised in the statement of financial position, plus net debt. Net debt is calculated 
as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. 

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return 
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 

Note 9. Financial instruments 

Financial risk management objectives 
During the year, the Group was exposed to foreign currency risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management 
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial 
performance of the Group. 

Material financial instruments of the Group consist of cash reserves, other receivables, accounts payable and other operating 
liabilities. 

The Board is responsible for managing the risks attached to financial instruments which is largely done through cashflow 
forecasting techniques employed to measure and monitor future capital requirements. 
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Note 9. Financial instruments (continued) 

Foreign currency risk 
The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currency and is exposed to foreign currency risk through 
foreign exchange rate fluctuations. The  Group's mining operations are Canadian based and funded by the Australian parent. 
There are minimal hedging arrangements in place to reduce the foreign currency risk exposure aside from minor cash 
balances held in Canada. The foreign exchange exposure can impact the  Group 's ability to continue to fund planned mining 
activities in Canada with funds raised in Australia. 

The average exchange rates and reporting date exchange rates applied were as follows: 

Average exchange rates 
Reporting date exchange 

rates 
30 Jun 2024  
(12 months) 

 30 Jun 2023  
(13 months) 30 Jun 2024 30 Jun 2023 

Australian dollars 
Canadian dollar to Australian dollar 1.1170 1.0989 1.1000 1.0989 

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting date 
were as follows: 

Assets Liabilities 
30 Jun 2024 30 Jun 2023 30 Jun 2024 30 Jun 2023 

Consolidated $ $ $ $ 

Canadian dollars 274,533 - 364,110 - 

AUD strengthened AUD weakened 

Consolidated - 30 Jun 2024 % change 

 Effect on 
profit before 

tax 

 
Effect on 

equity % change 

 Effect on 
profit before 

tax 

 
Effect on 

equity 

Canada 10% 8,958 8,958 10% (8,958)  8,958 

Liquidity risk 
Vigilant liquidity risk management requires the Group to maintain sufficient liquid assets (mainly cash and cash equivalents) 
and to consider available borrowing facilities to be able to pay debts as and when they become due and payable. 

The Group manages liquidity risk by largely by maintaining adequate cash reserves and by continuously monitoring actual 
and forecast cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities and its commitments. 

As at 30 June 2024 all of its financial instruments had contractual maturities less than 60 days and had fair values that 
approximated their carrying values. 
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Note 10. Key management personnel disclosures 

Compensation 
The aggregate compensation made to Directors and other members of key management personnel of the Group is set out 
below: 

Consolidated 
30 Jun 2024  
(12 months) 

 30 Jun 2023  
(13 months) 

$ $ 

Short term benefits 473,511 135,000 
Post-employment benefits 3,832 -  
Share-based payments 144,000 100,000 

621,343 235,000 

Note 11. Contingent liabilities 

During the current financial period the Canadian subsidiary, 1404100 B.C. Ltd, exercised Project Options on receipt of the 
Conditional Admission Letter. On the exercise of the Project Options, the Company granted to the vendors a 3% net smelter 
royalty on minerals extracted from the projects (royalty). 

Note 12. Commitments 

The Company completed the acquisitions of the following assets at admission to ASX: 

(a) 100% interest in the La Grande Project located in Quebec, Canada. LaGrande Project has three key prospects; (Joule, 
Aqua, Aero).

(b) 100% interest in the Troilus Project located in Quebec, Canada.

On 4 April 2024, the Company announced it had entered a Mining Claims Agreement with the Vendors to acquire a 100% 
interest in mining claims related to the La Grande East Project. 

These projects will require work over a 3-year period. 

● Joule has 321 number of claims with $266,781 required work and $57,459 required fees;
● Aqua has 172 number of claims with $95,961 required work and $30,788 required fees;
● Aero has 101 number of claims with $120,480 required work and $17,428 required fees;
● La Grande East has 136 number of claims with $10,260 required work and $13,604 required fees; and
● Troilus has 81 number of claims with $97,200 required work and $6,237 required fees.

Consolidated 
30 Jun 2024  30 Jun 2023 

$  $ 

Committed at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, payable: 
Within one year 238,733 69,866  
One to five years 477,465 139,733  

716,198 209,599  
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Note 13. Related party transactions 

Parent entity 
James Bay Minerals Limited is the parent entity. 

Subsidiaries 
Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 15. 

Key management personnel 
Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 10 and the remuneration report included in the Directors' 
report. 

Transactions with related parties 
Wagtail Capital (an entity related to former Director Matthew Hayes), was appointed as a Joint Lead Manager to the Public 
Offer (IPO) and was paid the following fees: 
(i) a corporate advisory fee in connection with the Public Offer and the listing process totalling $25,000;
(ii) a capital raising fee of 6% of the gross funds raised by Wagtail Capital under the Public Offer totalling $360,000; and
(iii) a further $50,000 upon the Company completing the Public Offer and ASX listing.

Receivable from and payable to related parties 
There were no receivables from related parties at the end of the current and prior reporting periods. 
For details of related party payables refer to note 7 'Trade and other payables'. 

Loans to/from related parties 
There were no loans to or from related parties at the current and previous reporting date. 

Terms and conditions 
All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates. 

Note 14. Parent entity information 

Set out below is the supplementary information about the parent entity. 

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 

Parent 
30 Jun 2024  
(12 months) 

 30 Jun 2023  
(13 months) 

$ $ 

Loss after income tax (1,849,553)  (380,010) 

Total comprehensive loss (1,849,553)  (380,010) 
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Note 14. Parent entity information (continued) 

Statement of financial position 

Parent 
30 Jun 2024  30 Jun 2023 

$ $ 

Total current assets 1,952,815 287,176 

Total assets 6,107,341 566,879 

Total current liabilities 66,167 465,479 

Total liabilities 66,167 465,479 

Equity 
Issued capital 8,090,827 489,000 
Foreign currency reserve (7,590)  (7,590) 
Share-based payments reserve 187,500 -  
Accumulated losses (2,229,563)  (380,010) 

Total equity 6,041,174 101,400 

Note 15. Interests in subsidiaries 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiary in accordance 
with the accounting policy described in note 1: 

Ownership interest 
 Principal place of business / 30 Jun 2024 30 Jun 2023 

Name  Country of incorporation % % 

1404100 B.C. Ltd (CAN)  Canada 100.00% 100.00% 

Note 16. Reconciliation of loss after income tax to net cash used in operating activities 

Consolidated 
30 Jun 2024  
(12 months) 

 30 Jun 2023  
(13 months) 

$ $ 

Loss after income tax expense for the year (4,840,677)  (659,713) 

Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation 14,945 -  
Share-based payments 2,117,950 -  
Foreign exchange differences - (7,590)

Change in operating assets and liabilities: 
Increase in trade and other receivables (984,421)  (1,440) 
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (99,386)  465,479 
Increase in deferred consideration liability 33,516 -  

Net cash used in operating activities (3,758,073)  (203,264) 
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Note 17. Remuneration of auditors 

During the financial year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by William Buck Audit (VIC) Pty Ltd, 
the auditor of the Company, and its network firms: 

Consolidated 
30 Jun 2024  
(12 months) 

 30 Jun 2023  
(13 months) 

$ $ 

Audit services - William Buck Audit (VIC) Pty Ltd 
Audit or review of the financial statements 34,750 12,500 

Non audit service 
Investigating Accountants Report - 12,500

Note 18. Earnings per share 

Consolidated 
30 Jun 2024  
(12 months) 

 30 Jun 2023  
(13 months) 

$ $ 

Loss after income tax (4,840,677)  (659,713) 

Cents Cents 

Basic earnings per share (9.04)  (9.61) 
Diluted earnings per share (9.04)  (9.61) 

Shares contingently issuable upon the vesting and exercise of other equity instruments have not been included in the 
calculation of dilutive earnings per share as the Group is in a loss position, and their effect would be anti-dilutive. 

Number Number 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating basic earnings per share 53,527,193 6,861,643 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating diluted earnings per share 53,527,193 6,861,643 
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Note 19. Share-based payments 

Reconciliation of share-based payments 
Consolidated 

30 Jun 2024  
(12 months) 

 30 Jun 2023  
(13 months) 

$ $ 

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
Exploration and evaluation costs - equity issued to Vendors as consideration to acquire 
mining claims 
- Shares issued to Vendors as consideration under the Prospectus(a) (i) 1,800,000 -  
- Shares subsequently issued to Vendors as consideration(a) (ii) 30,450 -  
- Deferred Consideration Shares to be issued to Vendors(a) (ii) 43,500 -  
Share based payments to directors 
- Vesting of performance rights granted to director, Andrew Dornan (b) (ii) 144,000 -  
- Shares issued to settle director entitlements for the period ended 30 June 2023 (b) (i) - 100,000

2,017,950 100,000 

2,017,950 100,000 

* Shareholders have approved an Employee Securities Incentive Plan (Incentive Plan) whereby the Group may, at the
discretion of the Board, grant securities including options and performance rights over ordinary shares in the Company to
certain key management personnel of the Group. The securities are issued for nil consideration and are granted in accordance
with performance guidelines established by the Board.

(a) Shares and performance rights issued to vendors.

(i) On 4 September 2023, the company closed the Offers under the Prospectus and completed the issue of 9,000,000
Consideration Shares to Vendors, valued at $1,800,000 or $0.20 per share (the Prospectus issue price).

On the same date, the company also issued the Vendors 5,000,000 performance rights with a five year expiry date. 

Each performance right will convert to one ordinary share in the Company during the performance period subject to the 
satisfaction of the following conditions: 
● Rights are subject to the Company achieving a drill intercept of 20m or greater of at least 1% Li2O within 5 years from

the date of the Company's admission to the official list of ASX. The Rights will each vest upon the Company successfully 
announcing the drill intercept on the ASX Market Announcements Platform. Rights will only vest in relation to the first drill
intercept on any of the Troilus, Aero-Aqua and Joule properties respectively, and shall not apply to subsequent drill 
intercepts or if multiple drill intercepts are achieved across more than one property.

● These non-market based vesting performance hurdles apply to 100% of the performance rights.

The performance rights were valued at 16.53 cents per right, which was determined using to a Binomial Options Valuation 
model, taking into account the following key inputs: a share price of 20 cents per share, a nil exercise price, volatility of 92.81%, 
a risk free rate of 3.88% and an expected dividend yield of nil. 

The granting of these performance rights have not given rise to a share based payment as the directors have determined that 
is too early to allocate a probability against achieving the specific non-market vesting conditions. 

(ii) On 4 April 2024, the Company announced it had entered a Mining Claims Agreement with the Vendors to acquire a 100%
interest in mining claims related to the La Grande East Project. The Agreement included initial and deferred consideration
comprising cash and equity. The initial consideration comprised CAD$21,000 and the issue of 210,000 shares with a fair value
of $30,450 ($0.145 per share). The deferred consideration is payable on or before 29 March 2026 and comprises CAD$30,000
and 300,000 shares with a fair value of $43,500 ($0.145 per share).
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Note 19. Share-based payments (continued) 

(b) Share based payments to a director.

(i) On 7 July 2023, 500,000 shares were issue to director, Gerard O'Donovan at $0.20 per share to settle director fee
entitlements accrued for the year ended 30 June 2023.

(ii) On 1 March 2024, following shareholder approval, the Company issued 3,000,000 performance rights to director, Andrew
Dornan under the employee incentive plan. The options expire 28 February 2028 and are  subject to the following vesting
conditions:

● Tranche 1 - 750,000 performance rights - 11 September 2024 (12 months continuous service as a Director from date of
listing).

● Tranche 2 - 750,000 performance rights - 11 September 2025 (24 months continuous service as a Director from date of
listing).

● Tranche 3 - 750,000 performance rights - The Company completing a maiden drill program of not less than 2,000 meters
on any of its properties.

● Tranche 4 - 750,000 performance rights - The Company announcing a drill intercept of at least 20 meters with a grade
of not less than 1 % Li2O on any of its properties.

 The valuation model inputs used to determine the fair value of Tranche 1 and Trance 2 performance rights as at the grant 
date, are as follows: 

Share price Exercise Expected Dividend Risk-free Fair value 
Grant date  Expiry date at grant date price volatility yield interest rate at grant date 

01/03/2024  28/02/2028 $0.180 $0.000 116.00% - 3.69% $0.160 
01/03/2024  28/02/2028 $0.180 $0.000 116.00% - 3.69% $0.160 

Tranche 3 and Tranche 4 performance rights have not given rise to a share based payment as the directors have determined 
that is too early to allocate a probability against achieving the specific non-market vesting conditions. 

(c) Performance rights granted

Set out below are summaries of performance rights granted. 

30 Jun 2024 
Balance at Expired/ Balance at 

Exercise the start of forfeited/ the end of 
Grant date  Expiry date price the year Granted Exercised  other the year* 

04/09/2023  04/09/2028 $0.000 - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 
01/03/2024  28/02/2028 $0.000 - 750,000 - - 750,000 
01/03/2024  28/02/2028 $0.000 - 750,000 - - 750,000 
01/03/2024  28/02/2028 $0.000 - 750,000 - - 750,000 
01/03/2024  28/02/2028 $0.000 - 750,000 - - 750,000 

- 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000 

* As at 30 June 2024, none of the performance rights are exercisable as the performance conditions have not been 
satisfied.

Note 20. Events after the reporting period 

No matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2024 that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect the Group's 
operations, the results of those operations, or the Group's state of affairs in future financial years. 
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This consolidated entity disclosure statement (CEDS) has been prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and 
includes information for each entity that was part of the Group as at the end of the financial year in accordance with AASB 
10 Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Place formed / 
Ownership 

interest 
Entity name  Entity type  Country of incorporation  %  Tax residency 

James Bay Minerals 
Limited Body corporate Australia - Australia
1404100 B.C. Ltd   Body corporate  Canada 100.00%   Canada 

Determination of tax residency 
Section 295 (3A)(vi) of the Corporation Act 2001 defines tax residency as having the meaning in the Income Tax Assessment 
Act 1997. The determination of tax residency involves judgement as there are different interpretations that could be adopted, 
and which could give rise to a different conclusion on residency. 

 In determining tax residency, the Group has applied the following interpretations: 

● Australian tax residency - The Group has applied current legislation and judicial precedent, including having regard to
the Tax Commissioner's public guidance in Tax Ruling TR 2018/5.

● Foreign tax residency - Where necessary, the Group has used independent tax advisers in foreign jurisdictions to assist
in its determination of tax residency to ensure applicable foreign tax legislation has been complied with (see section
295(3A)(vii) of the Corporations Act 2001).

● Partnerships and Trusts - None of the entities noted above were trustees of trusts within the Group, partners in a
partnership within the Group or participants in a joint venture within the Group.
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In the Directors' opinion: 

● the attached financial statements and notes comply with the Corporations Act 2001, the Accounting Standards, the
Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting requirements;

● the attached financial statements and notes comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board as described in note 1 to the financial statements;

● the attached financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 30 June 2024 
and of its performance for the financial year ended on that date;

● there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due
and payable; and

● the information disclosed in the attached consolidated entity disclosure statement is true and correct.

The Directors have been given the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001. 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors made pursuant to the Corporations Act 2001. 

On behalf of the Directors 

___________________________ 
Andrew Dornan 
Director 

30 September 2024 
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of James Bay 
Minerals Limited 

Report on the audit of the financial report 

      Our opinion on the financial report 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of James Bay Minerals Limited (the Company) and its 
subsidiaries (the Group) is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:  

— giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2024 and of its financial 
performance for the year then ended; and  

— complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.  

What was audited? 

We have audited the financial report of the Group, which comprises:  

— the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024,  

— the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended,  

— the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, 

— the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,   

— notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information, 

— the consolidated entity disclosure statement, and  

— the directors’ declaration. 

Basis for opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of 
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of 
the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional & Ethical Standards 
Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the 
Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 

  



 

 

 

 

Material uncertainty related to going concern 

We draw attention to Note 1 in the financial report, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of 
$4,904,861 and net cash outflows from operations of $3,758,073 during the year ended 30 June 2024. As 
stated in Note 1, these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1, indicate that a 
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Key audit matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial report of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material uncertainty related to going 
concern section, we have determined the matter described below to be a key audit matter to be 
communicated in our report.  
 

Accounting for 
transactions 
relating to the 
Initial Public 
Offering (“IPO”) 

Area of focus  
(refer also to notes 4, 7 and 19) 
 
During the year, the Group conducted an 
Initial Public Offering (‘IPO’) transaction. 
In leading up to this event, the Group 
conducted the following significant 
transactions: 

 
— Issued shares and performance rights 

to complete the acquisition of tenement 
licenses; 

— Raised capital under the IPO; 
— Issued performance rights as part of 

incentives set out in the IPO 
Prospectus; 

— Incurred capital raising costs from its 
brokers, professional advisors and 
regulators in-relation to the IPO. 

 
These significant transactions were key 
sources of estimation and judgement 
uncertainty for these financial statements 
and therefore determined to be a key 
audit matter, namely: 

 
— Accounting for the acquisitions of areas 

of interest; 
— Appropriately valuing the performance 

rights and shares issued for nil cash 
consideration at their appropriate fair 
value, vested in the appropriate 
accounting period;   

— Ensuring that all related party 
transactions were completely and 
accurately disclosed; and 

How our audit addressed the key 
audit matter 
 
Our audit procedures included:  

 
— Tracing through all obligations 

attached to these IPO costs to 
supporting documentation; 

— Understanding the terms of the 
performance rights issued including 
the number of performance rights 
issued, grant date, expiry date, and 
the presence of any market or non-
market conditions; 

— Assessing the Black Scholes models 
used by management to determine 
the valuation of the performance 
rights and examining the key inputs 
used in the model; 

— We recalculated the vesting charge of 
those performance rights taken to 30 
June 2024;  

— We recalculated the roll of equity 
during the year, which includes the 
funds raised from the IPO and the 
settlement of the acquisition of 
tenement licenses previously entered 
into; and  

— We assessed the appropriateness of 
the treatment of the IPO costs, those 
of which were classified as equity and 
those charged to the profit or loss 
depending upon their linkage to the 
issue of new share equity. 

 
 



 

 

 

 

Other information  

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2024, but does not include the financial 
report and our auditor’s report thereon. 
  
Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial report 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of: 

— the financial report (other than the consolidated entity disclosure statement) that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001; and 

— the consolidated entity disclosure statement that is true and correct in accordance with the Corporations 
Act 2001, and 

for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of: 

— the financial report (other than the consolidated entity disclosure statement) that gives a true and fair 
view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and 

— the consolidated entity disclosure statement that is true and correct and is free of misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.  

 
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

  

— Determining the appropriate 
apportionment of costs of the IPO 
between equity, when directly 
connected to the issue of new share 
capital, and a charge to the profit or 
loss, when connected to the quotation 
of existing share capital. 

— We also assessed the 
appropriateness of disclosures made 
in-relation to these matters, as 
described in critical estimates and 
judgements in a note to the financial 
statements and also the attaching 
related party disclosures. 



 

 

 

 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of this financial report. 
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and 
Assurance Standards Board website at: 
https://www.auasb.gov.au/admin/file/content102/c3/ar1_2020.pdf 
 
This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

Report on the Remuneration Report 

      Our opinion on the Remuneration Report 

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of James Bay Minerals Limited, for the year ended 30 June 
2024, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. 

What was audited? 

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in the directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 
2024. 

Responsibilities 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration 
Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing 
Standards. 

 

 

 

 
William Buck Audit (Vic) Pty Ltd 
ABN 59 116 151 136 

 

 

 

 
J. C. Luckins 
Director 
Melbourne, 30 September 2024 
 

https://www.auasb.gov.au/admin/file/content102/c3/ar1_2020.pdf
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The shareholder information set out below was applicable as at 5 September 2024. 
  
Distribution of equitable securities 
Analysis of number of equitable security holders by size of holding: 
  

 
 

Ordinary shares 
Rights over ordinary 

shares 
    % of total    % of total 
  Number  shares  Number  shares 
  of holders  issued  of holders  issued 
         
1 to 1,000  45  0.04  45  0.04 
1,001 to 5,000  318  1.43  318  1.43 
5,001 to 10,000  196  2.80  196  2.80 
10,001 to 100,000  384  21.75  384  21.75 
100,001 and over  76  73.98  76  73.98 
         
  1,019  100.00  1,019  100.00 
         
Holding less than a marketable parcel  287  0.09  287  0.09 
  
Unmarketable Parcels 
 
Minimum $ 500.00 parcel at $ 0.135 per unit. 
  
Voting rights 
The voting rights for each class of security on issue are:  
  
Ordinary shares 
Each ordinary shareholder is entitled to one vote for each share held.  
  
Performance Rights 
The holders of Performance Rights have no rights to vote at a general meeting of the company. 
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Equity security holders 
  
Twenty largest quoted equity security holders 
The names of the twenty largest security holders of quoted equity securities are listed below: 
  
  Ordinary shares 
     % of total  
     shares 
  Number held  issued 
     
a) MATTHEW ANTHONY HAYES (MATT & SIMONE A/C)  7,500,000  12.35 
b) ANDREW WILLIAM DORNAN (NANROD HOLDINGS A/C)  7,125,000  11.74 
c) MARTY HUBER  3,070,000  5.06 
d) MARK FEKETE  3,070,000  5.06 
e) SOUTH SHORE PARTNERSHIP INC  3,000,000  4.94 
f) THE LAST FRONTIER (WA) PTY LTD (DESERT INN INVESTMENT A/C)  1,250,000  2.06 
g) SQUARE METRE RECRUITMENT PTY LTD  1,225,064  2.02 
h) GERARD O'DONOVAN (O'DONOVAN FAMILY A/C)  975,000  1.61 
i) MR MATTHEW ANTHONY HAYES  789,977  1.30 
j) MR LUKE PATRICK IUSTINI & MRS SONIA LOUISE IUSTINI (THE S & L A/C)  750,000  1.24 
k) MR DAVID ANDREW JACKS  657,068  1.08 
l)  F & T SPAGNOLO PTY LTD (FRED SPAGNOLO FAMILY A/C)  650,000  1.07 
m) MR MATTHEW WALLACE BRUCE  642,150  1.06 
n) DION COLIN ROBESON (DION ROBESON A/C)  625,000  1.03 
o) MR ANDREW DORNAN (NANROD HOLDINGS A/C)  625,000  1.03 
p) MS LOUISE GEORGINA DORNAN  512,547  0.84 
q) MRS CAITLIN LAURA KYRON & MR KONSTANTINE DEAN KYRON (NIMBUS A/C)  500,000  0.82 
r) VICEX HOLDINGS PROPRIETARY LIMITED (VICEX SUPER A/C)  500,000  0.82 
s) AJS PREMIUM INVESTMENTS PTY LTD (A J S A/C)  496,768  0.82 
t) YILBER ALEXANDER QUINTANA  475,000  0.78 
     
  34,438,574  56.73 
  
Unquoted equity securities 
There are no unquoted equity securities. 
  
Substantial holders 
Substantial holders in the Company are set out below: 
  
  Ordinary shares 
     % of total  
     shares 
  Number held  issued 
     
a) Matthew Hayes1  7,750,000  12.81 
b) Andrew Dornan2  7,750,000  12.81 
c) Marty Huber3  3,070,000  5.06 
d) Mark Fekete4  3,070,000  5.06 
  
1. Last lodgement date 13 September 2023 
2. Last lodgement date 13 September 2023 
3. Last lodgement date 17 July 2024 
4. Last lodgement date 16 July 2024 
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Restricted securities 
  
The following table provides the number of Securities subject to ASX restrictions, as at 5 September 2024, and the restriction 
period applied to those Securities.  
  
    Number  
Class  Expiry date  of shares 
     
Shares  12 September 2025  27,267,500 
Performance Rights (JBYPE24)  12 September 2025  5,000,000 
     
    32,267,500 
  
Distribution – JBYPE24 – Performance Rights        
       

Range  Total holders  Units  % units 
       

  1 - 1,000  -  -  - 
1,001 - 5,000  -  -  - 

5,001 - 10,000  -  -  - 
100,001 Over  3  5,000,000  100.00%  

       
Total  3  5,000,000   

  
1.      Mark Fekete holds 1,666,667 Performance Rights, comprising 33.33% of this class. 
2.      South Shore Partnership Inc holds 1,666,667 Performance Rights, comprising 33.33% of this class. 
3.      Marty Huber holds 1,666,666 Performance Rights, comprising 33.33% of this class. 
  
Distribution – JBYPERD – Performance Rights        
       

Range  Total holders  Units  %units 
       

1 - 1,000  -  -  - 
1,001 - 5,000  -  -  - 

5,001 - 10,000  -  -  - 
100,001 Over  1  3,000,000  100.00%  

       
Total  1  3,000,000   

  
On-market Buy-Back  
Currently there is no on-market buy-back of the Company’s securities. 
  
Use of Funds  
 
The Company confirms that since admission to the ASX on 8 September 2023, it has used its cash and assets in a form 
convertible to cash that it had at the time of admission in a way consistent with its business objectives. 
 
Corporate Governance Statement  
 
James Bay Minerals Limited and the Board are committed to achieving and demonstrating the highest standards of corporate 
governance appropriate for a company of its size and nature of activities. James Bay Minerals Limited has reviewed its 
corporate governance practices against the Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations (4th edition) published 
by the ASX Corporate Governance Council.  
 
The 2024 corporate governance statement is dated as at 27 September 2024, and was approved by the Board on 27 
September 2024 and reflects the corporate governance practices in place throughout the 2024 financial year. A description of 
the group’s current corporate governance practices is set out in the group’s corporate governance statement which has been 
platformed on ASX Online and can also be viewed at: https://www.jamesbayminerals.com.au/corporate-governance. 
 

https://www.jamesbayminerals.com.au/corporate-governance
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Claims Schedule 
 
The following claims are held by James Bay Minerals Limited as at the date of this report: 
 

Project Property NTS Sheet Title No Status Titleholder(s) (Name, Number and Percentage)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701896 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701897 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701898 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701899 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701900 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701901 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701902 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701903 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701904 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701905 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701906 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701907 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701908 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701909 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701910 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701911 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701912 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701913 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701914 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701915 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701916 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701917 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701918 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701919 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701920 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701921 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701922 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701923 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701924 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701925 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701926 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701927 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701928 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701929 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701930 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701931 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701932 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701933 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701934 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701935 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2701936 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
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Project Property NTS Sheet Title No Status Titleholder(s) (Name, Number and Percentage)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711039 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711040 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711041 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711042 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711043 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711044 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711045 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711046 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711047 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711048 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711049 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711050 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711051 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711052 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711053 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711054 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711055 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711056 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711057 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711058 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711059 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711060 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711061 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711062 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711063 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711064 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711065 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711066 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711067 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711068 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711069 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711070 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711071 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711072 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711073 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711074 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711075 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711076 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711077 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711078 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711079 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711080 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711081 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711082 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2711083 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
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La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2714005 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2714006 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2714007 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2793579 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2793580 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2793581 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2793582 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2793583 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2793584 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2793585 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2793586 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2793587 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2793588 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2793589 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aero NTS 33F09 2793590 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702523 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702524 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702525 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702526 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702527 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702528 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702529 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702530 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702531 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702532 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702533 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702534 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702535 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702536 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702537 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702538 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702539 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702540 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702541 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702542 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702543 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702544 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702545 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702546 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702547 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702548 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702549 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702550 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702551 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702552 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
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La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702553 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702554 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702555 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702556 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702557 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702558 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702559 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702560 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2702561 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769684 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769685 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769686 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769687 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769688 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769689 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769690 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769691 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769692 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769693 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769694 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769695 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769696 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769697 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769698 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769699 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769700 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769701 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769702 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769703 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769704 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769705 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769706 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2769707 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799099 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799100 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799101 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799102 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799103 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799104 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799105 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799106 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799107 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799108 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799109 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799110 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  



James Bay Minerals Limited 
Additional Securities Information 
30 June 2024 
 
 

  

  
60 

Project Property NTS Sheet Title No Status Titleholder(s) (Name, Number and Percentage)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799111 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799112 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799113 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799114 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799115 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799116 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799117 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799118 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799119 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799120 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799121 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799122 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799123 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799124 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799125 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799126 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799127 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799128 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799129 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799130 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799131 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799132 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799133 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799134 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799135 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799136 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799137 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799138 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G11 2799139 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G11 2799140 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799141 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799142 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799143 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799144 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799145 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799146 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799147 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799148 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799149 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799150 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799151 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799152 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799153 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799154 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799155 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
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La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799156 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799157 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799158 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799159 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799160 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799161 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799162 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799163 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799164 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799165 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799166 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799167 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799168 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799169 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799170 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799171 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799172 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799173 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799174 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799175 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799176 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799177 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799178 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799179 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799180 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799191 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799192 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799193 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799194 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799195 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799196 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799197 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799198 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799199 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799200 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799201 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799202 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799203 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799204 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799205 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799206 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799207 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799208 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799209 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799210 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
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La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799211 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799212 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799213 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799214 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799215 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799216 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Aqua NTS 33G12 2799217 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746975 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746976 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746977 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746978 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746979 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746980 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746981 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746982 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746983 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746984 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746985 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746986 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746987 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746988 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746989 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746990 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746991 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746992 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746993 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746994 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746995 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746996 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746997 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746998 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2746999 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2747000 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2747001 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2747002 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2747003 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2747004 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2747005 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2747006 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2747007 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2747008 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2747009 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2747010 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2747011 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2747012 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
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La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2747013 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2747014 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2748961 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2748962 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2748963 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2748964 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2748965 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2748966 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2748967 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2748968 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2748969 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748970 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748971 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748972 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748973 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748974 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748975 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748976 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748977 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748978 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748979 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748980 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748981 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748982 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748983 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748984 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748985 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748986 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748987 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748988 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748989 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748990 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748991 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748992 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748993 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748994 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748995 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748996 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748997 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748998 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2748999 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749000 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749001 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749002 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749003 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
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La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749004 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749005 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749058 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749059 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749060 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749061 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749062 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749063 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749064 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749065 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749066 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749067 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749068 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749069 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749070 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749071 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749072 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749073 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749074 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749075 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2749076 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749077 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749078 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749079 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749080 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749081 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749082 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749083 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749084 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749085 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749086 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749087 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749088 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749089 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749090 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749091 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749092 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749093 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749094 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749095 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749096 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2749097 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765646 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765647 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765648 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
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La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765649 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765650 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765651 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765652 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765653 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765654 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765655 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765656 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765657 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765658 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765659 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765660 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765661 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765662 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765663 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765664 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765665 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765666 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765667 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765668 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765669 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765670 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765671 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765672 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765673 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765674 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765675 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765676 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2765677 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2765678 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2765679 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2765680 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2765681 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2765682 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2765683 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2765684 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2765685 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765699 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765700 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765701 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765702 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765703 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765704 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765705 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765706 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
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La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765707 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765708 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765709 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765710 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765711 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765712 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765713 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765714 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765715 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765716 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765717 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765718 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765719 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765720 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765721 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765722 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765723 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765724 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765725 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765726 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765727 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765728 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765729 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765730 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765731 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765732 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765733 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2765734 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2765735 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2765736 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2765737 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2765738 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800912 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800913 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800914 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800915 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800916 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800917 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800918 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800919 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800920 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800921 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800922 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800923 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800924 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
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La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800925 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800926 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800927 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800928 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800929 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800930 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800931 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800932 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800933 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800934 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800935 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800936 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800937 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800938 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800939 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800940 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800941 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800942 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800943 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800944 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800945 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800946 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800947 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800948 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800949 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800950 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800951 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2800952 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2800953 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2800954 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2800955 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2800956 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2800957 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2800958 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2800959 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2800960 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2800961 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2800962 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2800963 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2800964 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2800965 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F11 2800966 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800967 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800968 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800969 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
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La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800970 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800971 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800972 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800973 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800974 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800975 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800976 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800977 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800978 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800979 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800980 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800981 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800982 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800983 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800984 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800985 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800986 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800987 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800988 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800989 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800990 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800991 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800992 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800993 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800994 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800995 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800996 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800997 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800998 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2800999 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801000 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801001 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801002 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801003 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801004 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801005 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801006 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801007 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801008 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801009 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801010 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801011 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801012 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801013 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801014 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
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La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801015 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801016 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801017 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801018 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801019 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801020 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801021 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801022 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801023 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801024 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801025 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2801026 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande Joule NTS 33F10 2806788 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820959 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820960 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820961 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820962 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820963 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820964 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820965 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820966 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820967 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820968 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820969 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820970 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820971 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820972 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820973 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820974 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820975 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820976 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820977 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820978 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820979 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820980 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820981 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820982 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820983 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820984 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820985 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820986 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820987 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820988 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820989 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820990 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
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La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820991 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820992 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G05 2820993 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2820994 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2820995 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2820996 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2820997 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2820998 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2820999 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821000 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821001 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821002 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821003 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821004 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821005 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821006 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821007 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821008 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821009 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821010 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821011 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821012 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821013 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821014 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821015 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821016 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821017 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821018 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821019 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821020 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821021 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821022 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821023 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821024 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821025 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821026 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821027 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821028 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821029 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821030 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821031 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821032 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821033 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2821034 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802088 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
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La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802089 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802090 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802091 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802092 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802093 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802094 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802095 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802096 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802097 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802098 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802099 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802100 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802101 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802102 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802103 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802104 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802105 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802106 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802107 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802108 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802109 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802110 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802111 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802112 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802113 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802114 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802115 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802116 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802117 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802118 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802119 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802120 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802121 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802122 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802123 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802124 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802125 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802126 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802127 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802128 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802129 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802130 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802131 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802132 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802133 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
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La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802134 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802135 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802136 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802137 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802138 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802139 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802140 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802141 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802142 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802143 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802144 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802145 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802146 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
La Grande East LGE NTS 33G06 2802147 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2755224 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701937 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701938 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701939 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701940 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701941 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701942 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701943 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701944 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701945 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701946 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701947 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701948 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701949 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701950 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701951 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701952 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701953 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701954 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701955 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701956 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701957 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701958 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701959 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701960 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701961 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701962 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701963 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701964 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701965 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701966 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
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Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701967 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701968 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701969 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701970 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701971 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701972 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701973 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701974 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701975 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2701976 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702080 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702081 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702082 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702083 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702084 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702085 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702086 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702087 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702088 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702089 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702090 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702091 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702092 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702093 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702094 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702095 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702096 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702097 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702098 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702099 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702100 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702101 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702102 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702103 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702104 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702105 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702106 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702107 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702108 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702109 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702110 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702111 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702112 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702113 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702114 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
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Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702115 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702116 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702117 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702118 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  
Troilus Troilus NTS 32J15 2702119 Active 1404100 B.C. Ltd. (103183) 100 % (James Bay Minerals Ltd)  

 




